
Meeting Planning (Viewing) Sub-Committee

Date and Time Tuesday, 8th January, 2019 at 12.00 pm.

Venue The King Charles Hall, The Guildhall, Winchester

AGENDA

PROCEDURAL ITEMS

1.  Apologies 

To record the names of apologies given.

2.  Disclosures of Interests 

To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in matters to 
be discussed. 

Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests, and on 
Predetermination or Bias in accordance with legislation and the Council’s Code 
of Conduct. 

If you require advice, please contact the appropriate Democratic Services 
Officer, prior to the meeting.

BUSINESS ITEMS
Report 
Number

Ward

3.  Where appropriate, to accept the Update 
Sheet as an addendum to the Report 

4.  Planning Applications Schedule 
Item 14 from 13 December 2018 
Attached:

Public Document Pack



5.  Map of site and details of Members' Car 
Parking (Pages 7 - 8)

6.  Report Extract PDC1122 Item 14 (Pages 9 - 
18)

7.  Update Sheet Extract Item 14 13 December 
2018 (Pages 19 - 20)

8.  Draft Minute Extract Item 14 13 December 
2018 (Pages 21 - 22)

L Hall
Head of Legal Services (Interim)

Members of the public are able to easily access all of the papers 
for this meeting by opening the QR Code reader on your phone 
or tablet. Hold your device over the QR Code below so that it's 
clearly visible within your screen and you will be redirected to the 
agenda pack.

19 December 2018

Agenda Contact: Dave Shaw

*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are available on the 
Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk

MEMBERSHIP

Chairman: Ruffell (Conservative) Vice-Chairman: Read (Conservative)

Conservatives
Berry

Liberal Democrats

Cunningham
McLean

Evans
Izard
Laming
Rutter

Quorum = 3 members



DISABLED ACCESS:

Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place.

Please note that although members of the public are welcome to attend, there 
will be no further opportunity to make representation to the Sub Committee, as 

representations would have been heard at the original Planning Committee.

PLANNING (VIEWING) SUB COMMITTEE 

Planning (Viewing) Sub Committees are held when the Planning Committee has 
decided that it is not possible to determine an application, without visiting the 
application site to consider at first hand particular, material planning considerations. 
The reasons for the visit are agreed at the Planning Committee, following a 
preliminary discussion, and may be as a result of officer advice. The reasons are 
also recorded in the minutes of that meeting. These are attached to this agenda as 
background information. 

Although Ward Councillors and members of the public are welcome to attend the 
subsequent Sub Committee meeting (members of the public and parish council 
representatives are not allowed to attend site viewings), there will be no further 
opportunity to make representation to the Sub Committee as these would have been 
heard at the original Planning Committee. 

If the Planning Committee has decided that the Sub Committee should not specially 
report back to Committee, then a decision will be made at the meeting. 

The Viewing Sub Committee’s membership is drawn only from those Planning 
Committee members (including deputies) who attended the meeting of the 
Committee held on 13 December 2018. Only those present at this Committee will be 
able to vote on the application. 

The Human Rights Act 1998: 

Please note that the Human Rights Act 1998 makes it unlawful for the Council to act 
in a way incompatible with any of the Convention rights protected by the Act unless it 
could not have acted otherwise. 

In arriving at the recommendations to grant or refuse permission, careful 
consideration has been given to the rights set out in the European Convention on 
Human Rights including Article 6 (right to a fair trial), Article 8 (right to respect for 
private and family life), Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination in enjoyment of 
convention rights) and Article 1 of the first Protocol (the right to peaceful enjoyment 
of possessions). 



The Council is of the opinion that either no such rights have been interfered with or 
where there is an interference with the rights of an applicant or objector, such 
interference is considered necessary for any of the following reasons:- 

 The protection of rights and freedoms of others 
 Public safety 
 The protection of health or morals 
 The prevention of crime or disorder 
 The economic well being of the country. 

It is also considered that such action is proportional to the legitimate aim and in the 
public interest. 

PROCEDURE:

 At the site visit prior to the Sub Committee meeting – 

Members, officers, and the Ward Member(s) will visit the site(s) (in the company of 
the developer) immediately prior to a Sub Committee meeting, to familiarise 
themselves with the site and the planning issues. 

Ward Members and developers will be permitted to point out factual aspects of the 
site and the proposed development only, and will not be allowed to present their 
case (whether for or against the proposal). The developer will be encouraged to 
inform the Officers of the features on site that are relevant so that the Officers can 
point these out to Members and also to ensure the safety of Members and Officers 
while they are on the site. The Sub Committee may, with the consent of neighbours 
and at the Chairman’s discretion, visit neighbouring properties to view the application 
site. The visiting of neighbouring sites will be coordinated by the Planning Case 
Officer. 

The public and Parish Council representatives will not be invited to attend the site 
visit but may attend the subsequent Sub Committee meeting. 

At the meeting 

At the start of the Committee meeting, the Chairman will introduce the Councillors 
and officers at the table. Any Councillor’s declarations of interest will also be 
announced at this point. If the interest is considered by the Councillor to be 
significant, he/she will leave the meeting when it reaches that item on the agenda. 

The officer’s presentation 

On each item, the planning case officer will introduce the application to the 
Committee. They will concentrate on showing details of the proposals with the aid of 
projected visual material, including photographs of the site and plans. The length and 
details of the presentation at the meeting will be proportionate to the nature and 
scale of the proposal. The officer will make a recommendation to the Committee to 
either approve or refuse the application and, in the latter case, will state the reasons 
for this. 



The officer is required to make a recommendation and the presentation will include 
material to explain why the scheme is being recommended for permission or refusal. 
However, officers will not restate the information set out in the report which relates to 
the assessment of the planning merits of the case. Specialist officers dealing with 
issues such as design, historic environment and highways may also be available at 
Committee to provide advice on such matters and a legal representative will attend 
all Planning Committee meetings. 

Members’ Questions 

After the presentation, there will be an opportunity for the Councillors on the 
Committee to ask questions of the officers, usually based on the planning themes set 
out in the report. 

The Councillors’ Debate 

The Councillors will debate the application and may pick up any issues raised during 
public participation before a vote is taken to either;

 permit, 
 refuse or 
 defer (usually for a Viewing Sub-Committee or further information).

If the Committee votes against the officer’s recommendation, the reasons for this will 
be discussed and explained. A summary of the Committee’s reasons will be included 
in the minutes. 

Voting 

Every Member has one vote when a matter before the meeting requires a decision. 
In the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman may exercise a casting vote and 
that vote may be cast in any way he wishes. 

A Member may abstain from voting, or vote differently from how they may have 
indicated during the debate, without further explanation. The way each Member 
voted will not be recorded in the minutes, unless a motion to have a Recorded Vote 
has been passed. 

After the meeting 

After the meeting, the minutes will be available from the Council’s website and a 
decision notice will be sent to the applicant/agent. Applicants have a right of appeal 
against a Committee decision to refuse planning permission, or any conditions 
imposed on permission, and any appeal will be considered by an Inspector 
appointed by the Secretary of State. Where an application has been permitted, there 
is no opportunity for objectors to appeal, other than to the Court by way of judicial 
review 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14 – Meadows Farm, Envills Road, Worlds End, Hambledon, PO7 4QU

PLEASE NOTE: Members can park all around the application barn at the top. The 
Case Officer, Robert Green will arrive early to ensure the gates are open etc.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Viewing Sub Committee – 8 January 2019

PDC1122 - item 14 - Report – 13 December 2018 - EXTRACT

Case No: 18/01806/FUL 
Proposal Description: (RETROSPECTIVE) (AMENDED DESCRIPTION) Proposed 

use of first-floor mezzanine and partial use of ground floor of 
(northwest) agricultural storage building for office purposes 
(Class B1)

Address: Meadows Farm, Ervills Road, Worlds End, Hambledon, PO7 
4QU.

Parish, or Ward if within 
Winchester City:

Denmead

Applicants Name: Mr J. Chambers
Case Officer: Robert Green
Date Valid: 27 July 2018
Recommendation: Application Permitted

© Crown Copyright and database rights Winchester City Council License 100019531

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



General Comments

The application is reported to Committee due to the number of public representations received 
contrary to the Officer’s recommendation.

The application is also reported at the request of Denmead Parish Council, whose correspondence is 
attached as an appendix to this report.

Site Description

Meadows Farm is an agricultural holding accessed from Ervills Road in Worlds End. From the 
roadway, an access track leads toward the application site and provides access to the remainder of 
the farm. A dwelling house which is not associated with the farm holding sits to the east of this track.

The wider farm holding extends a considerable distance and contains 3 existing buildings which are 
in close proximity to one another, with various points to the barns along the length of the track 
providing access to these buildings and the surrounding area.

The application concerns the larger northern building which provides agricultural storage. This barn 
and its associated hard surfacing are a recent addition to the farm area, having obtained permission 
for its construction in 2014.

The application site is bordered by a combination of boundary treatments. A brick wall and 
automatic gates face the east, whilst a timber boarded fence borders the public right of way which 
runs to the south of the area. A bund and timber fence divide the site from the rest of the farm to 
the north, whilst fencing borders the site to the west.

A public right of way runs from Ervills Road along the access track, and separates to the south of the 
application site, running across the remainder of the holding.

The area is rural in character with a combination of large residential dwellings and farmland.

Proposal

The proposal applies for retrospective permission to partially use the agricultural storage building for 
office purposes (under Class B1).

The conversion concerns the western end of the building and contains a staff room and meeting 
room on the ground floor with office space on a mezzanine level above.

The remainder of the barn would continue in its current use as an agricultural storage building, 
which is overlooked by internal windows within the office space.

Car parking would be provided within the enclosed space of the barn compound.

Relevant Planning History

14/02601/APN - Erection of agricultural barn – No Objection raised and issued 15.12.2014

Page 10



Consultations

WCC Engineers: Drainage:

 The site is within Flood Zone 1 and is at a very low risk of surface water flooding.
 The development will not affect existing flood risk.

WCC Engineers: Highways:

 The application does not include any highway implications and no objection is 
raised.

WCC Head of Environmental Protection:

 No adverse comments subject to conditions restricting hours of operation, timing of 
deliveries and a lighting plan.

Hampshire County Council (Rights of Way)

 Requests pre-commencement details on the resurfacing of the access track which 
is a Public Right of Way
Note: The resurfacing of the access track was removed from the proposal during 
the course of the application.

Representations:

Denmead Parish Council

 Not in keeping with policy MTRA4, maintenance highway vehicles may enter the 
site at inappropriate times.

 Lighting would cause a disturbance to wildlife habitats.
 Future concreting may raise pressures on TPO tree [NOTE: Following receipt of 

comments, the applicant has removed the resurfacing of the access track from the 
application and the proposal description was updated accordingly.]

25 letters from 20 addresses received objecting to the application for the following reasons: 

 Increase in traffic and noise

Page 11



 Lighting on barn
 Expansion of industrial premises
 Potential use at unsociable hours
 Potential for heavy good vehicles

Comment from Cllr Stallard

 Impact of lighting
 Impact from increased vehicle traffic
 Would cause disruption and inappropriate noise/light and traffic generation.

Reasons aside not material to planning and therefore not addressed in this report

 Opinion of applicant
 Alleged enforcement breaches not related to the application site.

18 letters from 18 addresses received supporting the application for the following reasons:

 Small businesses should be encouraged
 Existing buildings being used in a productive way
 Provides job opportunities 
 Prevents commuting
 Reduction in countryside crime rate by having people in a rural location during the day.

Relevant Planning Policy:

Winchester Local Plan Part 1 – Joint Core Strategy

 MTRA4 – Development in the Countryside
 CP8 – Economic Growth and Diversification
 CP16 – Biodiversity

Winchester Local Plan Part 2 – Development Management and Site Allocations

 DM15 – Local Distinctiveness
 DM16 – Site Design Criteria
 DM17 – Site Development Principles
 DM18 – Access and Parking
 DM23 – Rural Character

Denmead Neighbourhood Plan

 Policy 1 – A Spatial Plan for the Parish

Page 12



National Planning Policy Guidance/Statements:

National Planning Policy Framework 2018

Planning Considerations

Principle of development

The application site is outside of a defined settlement boundary and is therefore within the countryside 
under development plan policies.

In this area, policy MTRA4 (Development in the Countryside) of the Local Plan Part 1 allows proposals 
which have an essential or operational need for a countryside location.

In addition, the policy accepts that there are a number of occupied buildings within the countryside which 
are an accepted part of the landscape, and it is considered appropriate for them to be used productively 
for re-use or re-development for an alternative purpose.

Policy MTRA4 therefore allows proposals for the reuse of existing rural buildings for employment purposes.

This application uses an existing building in the rural environment and proposes the conversion of part of 
this building for employment purposes. 

Therefore, the proposal complies with the criterion of policy MTRA4 and the principle of the development 
is acceptable.

Policy MTRA4 also notes that development proposed in accordance with the policy should not cause harm 
to the character and landscape of the area or neighbouring uses or create inappropriate noise/light and 
traffic generation. These elements are assessed further in this report.

Design/layout

The internal conversion of part of the building for office purposes results in the inclusion of external 
windows on the western elevation of the barn and an entrance door along the southern wall which 
contains an overhanging porch. Despite these introductions, the barn building maintains its rural 
appearance and long-distance views to the building show what would be expected in a rural 
environment.

The conversion to offices does introduce the additional need for car parking for office workers, and 
the Highways impact has been assessed later in the report. From a design and layout perspective, 
the area surrounding the barn maintains sufficient space to provide parking facilities for employees 
which, due to the boundary treatments, are largely hidden from the public realm.

Impact on character of area and neighbouring property

The area surrounding the application site is rural in character and Policy DM23 (Rural Character) of LPP2 

Page 13



plays an important part in the assessment of the application.

As the application involves the internal conversion of an existing structure, an increase in the visual and 
physical impact of the development does not materially increase as a result of this application.

A key characteristic of the rural environment is the tranquillity of the area which is particularly important 
on this site due to the amount of public rights of way which cross the area. This application would allow 
the retention of an office facility which, whilst intensifying the use of the site, does not propose a use 
which would be adversely harmful to the tranquil nature of the surrounding environment. The enjoyment 
of the rural environment from the public right of ways which cross the site are not harmed by the 
introduction of an office facility to the building and the Rights of Way Officer does not raise an objection 
to this part of the application.

In addition, condition 06 has been included to obtain details of the lighting arrangements for the barn at 
the request of the Environmental Health Officer. This is to ensure that excessive lighting is not introduced 
as a result of the office use.

Meadow Farm House is located outside of the ownership of the applicant and is 56m from the barn 
building at its closest distance, and approximately 71m from the part of the barn which contains the office 
use. Environmental Health have been consulted during the course of the application and have 
recommended the inclusion of conditions restricting hours of operation and timing of deliveries.

These conditions have been included (04 and 05) to protect the amenities of neighbouring occupants. 
Condition 03 has also been included to ensure this part of the building remains in B1 use and is not 
converted in the future to a more intensive use without a planning assessment. 

Landscape/Trees

Two trees protected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) sit to the west of the access track; both are 
outside of the application site but within the ownership of the applicant. Originally, the application also 
included the resurfacing of the access track from Ervills Road up to the application site and comments 
of concern were raised regarding the impact on the protected trees.

Upon reviewing the comments and following communication with the agent of the application, this 
aspect of the application was removed and an updated planning statement resulted in the proposal 
description being amended during the course of the application concerning solely the conversion to 
office use.

Highways/Parking

The introduction of an office facility to the site introduces the requirement for parking facilities for 
employers. As detailed previously in this report, sufficient space exists surrounding the barn to 
provide parking for the offices.

Whilst this inevitably results in increased use of the access track to travel to the northern barn, the 
Highway Officer does not consider this increase to create a significant highway implication and no 
objection is raised on these grounds.

Other Matters

Page 14



Comments have raised concern regarding the alleged use and potential future use of the site for 
commercial reasons.

Whilst these concerns are acknowledged, this application is seeking to allow the use of part of an 
existing rural building for office purposes which complies with local policies which govern 
development in the countryside. Site meetings and consequent unannounced site visits have 
demonstrated that the remainder of the barn contains agricultural equipment in compliance with its 
expected use.

If the site is to be used for a purpose other than its permitted agricultural use class, this would require 
its own application which would be assessed on its merits at that time if required.

Therefore, as each application is assessed and decided on its own merits, this application for the 
conversion of part of an agricultural building for office purposes is compliant with the development 
plan and does not create material planning harm which justifies refusing the application.

Recommendation

Application Permitted subject to the following condition(s):

Conditions

1   The development must continue to operate in accordance with the following plans:

Site and Location Plan [drawing SD-1839-00 Revision D] received 31.07.2018, 

Plans and Elevations [drawing SD-1839-01 Revision A] received 31.07.2018

 1   Reason: In the interests of proper planning and for the avoidance of doubt

 2   The change of use to B1 hereby permitted must only apply to the ground floor and mezzanine 
level as shown on drawing SD-1839-01 Revision A.

The remainder of the building must remain in an agricultural use.

 2   Reason: To ensure the terms of the application are clear in the interest of proper planning and 
for the avoidance of doubt.

 3   Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 2015 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with our without 
modification), the development hereby permitted (as defined by condition 02) shall be used only for 
purposes within Class B1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 
1987, (or in any provision equivalent to those Classes in any Statutory Instrument revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification) and for no other purpose(s).

 3   Reason:  To restrict the use of the premises in the interests of the local amenity and to restrict 
the potential permitted development changes provided by the General Permitted Development 
Order allowing the Local Planning Authority to assess potential future alterations to this part of the 
building.

Page 15



 4   The use hereby permitted shall only open to employees within the following times 0630 till 
2100hrs Monday to Friday and at no time on Saturdays, Sundays or recognised public holidays.

 4   Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

 5   No deliveries shall be taken at or dispatched from the site except between the hours of 0630 and 
2100 Monday to Friday and at no time on Saturdays, Sundays and recognised public holidays.

 5   Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of nearby properties.

 6   Within 3 months of the date of consent, details of any external lighting of the site shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

This information shall include a layout plan with beam orientation and a schedule of equipment in 
the design (luminaire type, mounting height, aiming angles and luminaire profiles).

The lighting shall be installed, maintained and operated in accordance with the approved details.

The external lighting will not be switched on between the hours of 21:00 in the evening and 06:30 
the following morning.

 6   Reason: To protect the appearance of the area, the environment and local residents from light 
pollution.

Informatives:

1.
In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (July 2018), Winchester City Council 
(WCC) take a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, working 
with applicants and agents to achieve the best solution. To this end WCC:
- offer a pre-application advice service and,
- update applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their 
application, where possible suggesting alternative solutions.
In this instance a site meeting was carried out with the applicant.
 2.
The Local Planning Authority has taken account of the following development plan 
policies and proposals:-
Local Plan Part 1 - Joint Core Strategy: MTRA4, CP8 and CP16
Local Plan Part 2 - Development Management and Site Allocations: DM15, DM16, 
DM17, DM18 and DM23
3.
This permission is granted for the following reasons:
The development is in accordance with the Policies and Proposals of the 
Development Plan set out above, and other material considerations do not have 
sufficient weight to justify a refusal of the application. In accordance with Section 
38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, planning permission 
should therefore be granted.
4.

Page 16



All building works including demolition, construction and machinery or plant 
operation should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and 1800 hrs 
Monday to Friday and 0800 and 1300 hrs Saturday and at no time on Sundays or 
recognised public holidays. Where allegations of noise from such works are 
substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, a Notice limiting the hours of 
operation under The Control of Pollution Act 1974 may be served.
5.
During Construction, no materials should be burnt on site. Where allegations of 
statutory nuisance are substantiated by the Environmental Protection Team, an 
Abatement Notice may be served under The Environmental Protection Act 1990. The 
applicant is reminded that the emission of dark smoke through the burning of 
materials is a direct offence under The Clean Air Act 1993.
6.
Please be respectful to your neighbours and the environment when carrying out your 
development. Ensure that the site is well organised, clean and tidy and that facilities, 
stored materials, vehicles and plant are located to minimise disruption. Please 
consider the impact on your neighbours by informing them of the works and 
minimising air, light and noise pollution and minimising the impact of deliveries, 
parking and working on public or private roads. Any damage to these areas should 
be remediated as soon as is practically possible.
For further advice, please refer to the Construction Code of Practise
http://www.ccscheme.org.uk/index.php/ccs-ltd/what-is-the-ccs/code-of-considerate-
practice
7.
Please be advised that Building Regulations approval may be required for this 
development. Please contact WCC Building Control Department for more information 
(T: 01962 848176, E: buildingcontrol@winchester.gov.uk)

Appendix 1 – Response from Denmead Parish Council

Please return this form to the Case Officer:            Robert Green

From: Denmead Parish Council

Case No: 18/01806/FUL

Closing Date for Comments: 24.09.2018

Location: Meadows Farm, Ervills Road, Worlds End, Hambledon, PO7 4QU
Proposal: Proposed use of first-floor mezzanine of (northwest) agricultural storage building for office 

purposes (Class B1) and resurfacing of existing access drive.

Comments:

Page 17



The Parish Council of Denmead, by a majority decision, raised a STRONG OBJECTION to this proposal and cited 
the following reasons: 

 The proposed building would be severely detrimental to this important part of the countryside 
environment and character of Denmead. This has been recognised in previous planning decisions 
made by WCC since 2004 (vis 04/00217/COU).

 Worlds End is a small hamlet which should be preserved as such and therefore committee 
members would wish to see the barn only being used for agricultural necessity, in relation to 
Policy No. CE 17 in Part 1 of the WCC Local Plan. 

 The proposed change of use/conversion of the agricultural barn to an employment-generated 
premises is also not in keeping within Winchester District Local Plan Part 1, Policy MTRA 4, 
which states that “Development proposed in accordance with this policy should not cause harm to 
the character and landscape of the area or neighbouring uses, or create inappropriate noise/light 
and traffic generation”. Members are concerned that potentially large maintenance highway 
vehicles may access the area during the proposed operational times of 6.30am – 9.00pm, which 
would cause a significant disturbance to local residents. 

 Members do not wish lighting to be used at the premises during the proposed operational hours, 
as this would cause a disturbance to wildlife habitats. Winchester District Local Plan Part 1, Policy 
CP16, states “new development will be required to show how biodiversity can be retained, 
protected and enhanced through its design and implementation…” and seeks only to support 
development proposals if the benefits of the development clearly outweigh the harm to the habitat 
and/or species. 

 In conclusion, Denmead Parish Council also wish to comment that the Planning Application does 
not show the existing excessive concrete which is in place around the barn and has also covered 
the trunk of a significant tree. The concern is that additional concrete may be added, thereby 
seriously threatening the life of a tree which has a Tree Preservation Order. “Development should 
not result in the loss or deterioration of special trees and the space required to support them in 
the long term”, as stated in Winchester District Local Plan Part 2, Policy DM23.

Request for application to be considered by Committee:
(NB: Case Officer to forward form to Head of Planning Control if this section completed)

Should there be a conflict of views between Members comments and the Case Officer, Members 
would wish for this matter to go to the Development Control Committee.

Signed: L J Merriman ~ Deputy 
Clerk

Date:     28.09.2018

Page 18



Planning Viewing Sub Committee – 8 January 2019

Update Sheet – 13 December 2018 - EXTRACT

Item 
No

Ref No Address Recommendation

14 18/01806/FUL Meadows Farm, Ervills Road, Worlds 
End, Hambledon, PO7 4QU

Permit

Officer Presenting: Robert Green

Speaking
Objector: Carolyn Hargreaves-World End Residents Assoc
Parish Council representative: Cllr Paula Langford-Smith
Ward Councillor: Mr Neil Lander-Brinkley on behalf of Cllr Stallard with a pre-
prepared speech.
Supporter: Mr Robert Tutton-Agent

Update

1. Comment received from CPRE Hampshire (11.12.2018) raising concern over 
increased heavy traffic, lighting and hours of operation restrictions.

The retention of the office facilities introduces an element of transportation to and 
from the site by office workers. This is not considered to introduce excessive use 
of the access track or ‘increased heavy traffic’. The Highways Officer and Rights 
of Way Officer have raised no objection on these grounds.

In addition, condition 04 restricts the hours of operation as recommended by the 
Environmental Health Officer and condition 06 requests lighting details to be 
submitted including beam orientation a schedule of the lighting equipment used. 
This then restricts the use of lighting between 21:00 and 06:30 the following 
morning.

Therefore the receipt of this comment does not alter the officer’s recommendation.

2. Additional Objection comment received from Denmead Parish Council 
(12.12.2018) providing a history of the Agricultural Prior Notification (APN) 
applications. Comment raises concern regarding the addition of windows and 
lighting and concludes by making comments on the amount of concrete 
surrounding the site.

Conditions to control the hours of operation alongside lighting (including hours of 
lighting use) are included to avoid adverse impact on the tranquil nature of the 
surrounding environment. 
As this application considers the retention of an office use only where each 
application is determined on its own merits, significant harm which justifies 
refusing the application has not been found.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Planning Viewing Sub Committee – 8 January 2019

Draft Minute Extract – 13 December 2018

Item 14:  (RETROSPECTIVE) (AMENDED DESCRIPTION) Proposed use of 
first-floor mezzanine and partial use of ground floor of (northwest) agricultural 
storage building for office purposes (Class B1).
Meadows Farm, Ervills Road, Worlds End, Hambledon.
Case number: 18/01806/FUL

The Head of Development Management referred Members to the Update 
Sheet which contained comment received from CPRE Hampshire 
(11.12.2018) raising concern over increased heavy traffic, lighting and hours 
of operation restrictions.  The retention of the office facilities introduced an 
element of transportation to and from the site by office workers.  This was not 
considered to introduce excessive use of the access track or ‘increased heavy 
traffic’.  The Highways Officer and Rights of Way Officer had raised no 
objection on these grounds.

In addition, condition 4 restricted the hours of operation as recommended by 
the Environmental Health Officer and condition 06 requested lighting details to 
be submitted including beam orientation and a schedule of the lighting 
equipment used. This then restricted the use of lighting between 21:00 and 
06:30 the following morning.

Therefore the receipt of this comment did not alter the officer’s 
recommendation.

An additional objection comment had been received from Denmead Parish 
Council (12.12.2018) providing a history of the Agricultural Prior Notification 
(APN) applications.  Comment raised concern regarding the addition of 
windows and lighting and concluded by making comments on the amount of 
concrete surrounding the site.

Conditions to control the hours of operation alongside lighting (including hours 
of lighting use) were included to avoid adverse impact on the tranquil nature 
of the surrounding environment.

The Head of Development Management concluded in the Update Sheet that 
as this application considered the retention of an office use only where each 
application was determined on its own merits, significant harm which justified 
refusing the application had not been found.

During public participation, Paula Langford-Smith, Denmead Parish Council 
and Carolyn Hargreaves (World End Residents Association) spoke in 
objection to the application and Robert Tutton (agent), spoke in support and 
answered Members’ questions thereon.

During public participation, Neil Lander-Brinkley spoke on behalf of Councillor 
Stallard (Ward Member) with a pre-prepared speech.

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



A summary of the points raised by Neil Lander-Brinkley on behalf of 
Councillor Stallard is set out below:

- The landscape was part of Hampshire Treasures
- The application was retrospective
- Policy MTRA4 and rural buildings
- Traffic counts had exceeded 60 per day on a single track farm access 

lane, which was greater than needed and was unacceptable.
- The increase in traffic movements was not warranted and was a burden on 

a narrow country lane
- The Farm House was not connected to the barn
- The floodlighting was very visible over the countryside
- NPPF was time limited
- The development was outside of the development boundary
- Office staff came from a wide area and there were better business sites 

locally that were sustainable.  The Parklands Business Park was for Small 
and Medium sized enterprises and had parking

- The volume of concrete on the land
- Policy DM23 – development should not affect the local character and 

environment
- There had been no engagement with the local community on the 

application
- There was considerable objection and the application should be refused

The Committee agreed to defer the decision to a meeting of the Planning 
(Viewing) Sub Committee to be held on Tuesday 8 January 2019 to 
commence at 12:00noon.  The Planning (Viewing) Sub Committee would visit 
the site before the meeting in order to assess the impact of the partial use of 
the agricultural storage building for office use.

Page 22


	Agenda
	5 Map of site and details of Members' Car Parking
	6 Report Extract PDC1122 Item 14
	7 Update Sheet Extract Item 14 13 December 2018
	8 Draft Minute Extract Item 14 13 December 2018

